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Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1.
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Penny Moon
Senior Administrative Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP15-2891P

	1. 
	6
	1.6
	Q.
Please clarify how we are to format our responses. Are we to provide responses to the different bulleted statements and address the questions in the Response Guideline boxes, only address the questions in the Response Guideline boxes or incorporate responses to the questions in the Response Guideline boxes within our responses to the bulleted statements?
A.
Following the instructions in Section 1.6.1, vendors should respond to each section that is not listed in the table on page 3. Vendors must respond to each item listed in each section fully describing the services and benefits their offering has. The “response guideline” is simply that, a guideline, and is not intended to replace the individual services and expectations listed within each subsection.

	2. 
	6
	1.5.1
	Q.
Will the State of Montana agree to contract terms and conditions substantially similar to those in our standard Agreement for Employee Assistance Program Services, included in this email for your reference?
A.
The State requires the use of the contract that was attached to the RFP.

	3. 
	7
	1.6.5
	Q.
May we send the electronic versions of our response to the RFP on CD instead of USBs?
A.
No.  Many of our computers have been updated and only take USBs. 

	4. 
	7
	1.6.5
	Q.    It states to submit 5 electronic copies on flash drive, does this mean to send 5 flash drives? Will the state accept proposal by email in lieu of paper copies and flash drives?
A.     Yes, five separate USB devices, each with one copy of the proposal, are required. No, the State cannot accept responses via email because we have no way to seal or protect the email. Statute requires all RFP responses to be submitted in a sealed format.

	5. 
	11
	3
	Q.
Would the state consider working with an independent vendor for financial education services (i.e. one-on-on education sessions and/or comprehensive, accredited, financial education courses delivered onsite, via webcast and/or through online recordings?
A.
No. The State intends to provide one comprehensive EAP service to employees. 

	6. 
	11
	3.1.3
	Q.
Do you want the EAP vendor to provide managed care services?
A.
If, by managed care services, you mean case management for large or high dollar medical services, then no.  The Third Party Administrator of the Health Plan and HCBD manage these cases. 

	7. 
	12
	3.1.4
	Q.    Should our pricing be based on 12,000 covered employees?
A.     Pricing may be based on the 12,000 covered employees; however, keep in mind that services will be offered to all employees and their immediate family members, regardless of whether or not the employee is covered under the State Plan. See Appendix D for demographics information.

	8. 
	12
	3.1.5
	Q.
Why does the employee health plan currently not have an EAP service provider? Was there a provider in the past? Were there any issues with this program?
A.
The State of Montana has had an EAP service provider in the past.  The services were underutilized. Management at the time decided to terminate the contract and offer enriched mental health benefits in lieu of a full EAP service. However, we have identified that certain needs are not being met with only offering a benefit through the State Health Plan.  Specifically, people often need assistance connecting with a mental health providers and follow up to ensure a good fit.  Members have verbalized a need and desire for legal and financial services. Managers are in need of training and coaching support, and agencies or groups occasionally need some type of incident stress debriefing.

	9. 
	12
	3.1.5
	Q.
Can you share the cost of the current contract?
A.
The employee health plan does not have a current service provider for EAP services.

	10. 
	12
	3.1.5
	Q.
Please provide background for why the State of Montana wants to contract for EAP services at this time.  What are the specific goals / objectives that the State of Montana has for its EAP?
A.   The State of Montana is seeking to implement an EAP program at this time as we have utilized an enriched mental health benefit for several years and we have determined that benefit alone does not adequately address all of the needs of our employees.  The same services are continually requested in addition to mental health resources: a source for personal legal and financial advice, critical incident stress de-briefing, stress management resources, and management support. Recognizing that the overall well-being of employees is critical to job satisfaction, work performance and productivity, HCBD is seeking a more comprehensive EAP service to fill this role.   In the past, HCBD and the State of Montana contracted for EAP services with quite a number of “extras” that remained unutilized.  Our goal is to provide services that meets the requests of our employees, and improves the health and wellbeing. 

	11. 
	12
	3.1.6
	Q.
How many members utilized the four visits that are available with the enhanced mental health benefit during 2014?  How many members continued on with the provider after exhausting the four “free” visits during that same period?
A.
We do not currently have access to that information. The mental health benefit has been covered under a capitation plan.  Because that product was fully insured, we do not have specific numbers regarding usage.  HCBD is terminating the capitation product and mental health claims will process as any other medical claim under the self-funded plan, starting May 1, 2015. 

	12. 
	12
	3.1.6
	Q.
How long have you been with Cigna?
A.
Cigna took over as the Third Party Administrator on January 1, 2013.  The State Plan is self-funded and the TPA subject to change based on contract. 

	13. 
	12
	3.1.6
	Q.    Please provide any available historical utilization data of the enhanced mental health benefit currently in place.  We would like to know the number of new cases and the number of sessions utilized in each of the last three (3) years.
A.   See the answer to Question 11. 

	14. 
	12
	3.1.6
	Q.    Please provide insight into the condition of the workforce. Are there specific issues facing your workforce (i.e. stress, morale, etc.) and HR? Have there been any major events in the last year (i.e. reductions in force, critical incidents, etc.)?
A.     Because the State is such a large employer, morale and stress level vary from agency to agency. The HCBD EAP Manager will be working closely with the EAP vendor to ensure the appropriate trainings and coaching are directed to the areas in need.  The EAP Manager has identified several areas in need of management coaching. 

        Reductions in workforce have not been a significant issue in past couple of years.  However, those types of reductions are budget dependent and can change rapidly especially during legislative session, which is currently in process. We have had several critical incidents in the past year.  
        Critical incidents usually revolve around an untimely death, often by suicide.  The rate of suicide for State employees is on par with the overall suicide rate for Montana.  Montana’s rate of death by suicide is twice that of the national average, so this is a significant issue to address. 

	15. 
	12
	3.2
	Q.
Why are you going out to bid?
A.
See response to question # 10.

	16. 
	12
	3.2
	Q.
Please define “short term counseling” by a set number of sessions per issue. Do you want us to use 4 or 6 sessions as defined in the pricing section?
A.
By short term counseling, we mean the number of sessions with a counselor offered to the client at no cost to them. We would like to know what the cost would be if we offer 4 sessions or 6 sessions per year.  And we would also like to know what the cost difference would look like if we offered a specified number of visits per issue vs. per year.  Our goal is to have these providers align with our network of participating providers so if the client decides to continue past the designated number of free visits, their insurance coverage will take over, and only their co-pay will apply to ongoing sessions at the in-network level of benefit. We want to maintain continuity of care, and not require that our employees begin treatment with one provider and transfer to another provider after 4 or 6 sessions.     

	17. 
	12
	3.2
	Q.
Why has the State chosen not to include work life resources in the EAP scope? Childcare, eldercare and resource referral services are very much standard in EAP best practice models.
A.
The State expects these types of referrals to be made as part of the basic EAP services. If these services are offered as an “add-on” service, as opposed to being part of the usual assessment and referral process, provide a description of them and how they are separate from the usual process, and the cost difference between offering them as part of the service and not. 

	18. 
	12
	3.2
	Q.
Do you have Department of Transportation (DOT) employees? If so, how many?
A.
Yes, we have approximately 2100 employees in this agency 

	19. 
	12
	3.2
	Q.
What is your current utilization and how is it calculated (e.g. are web hits, training attendance, etc. included in the rate)?  Can you share one of your recent utilization reports?
A.
See the answer to Question 11. 

	20. 
	12
	3.2
	Q.
You mention legal and financial services.  Would you like to us to include pricing for work life services (e.g. child/elder care, convenience, etc.)?
A.
See question 17. 

	21. 
	12
	3.2
	Q.
Mediation is mentioned in the RFP. Can you provide some examples of what the State considers mediation?
A.
The State would consider mediation to be conflict resolution for individual personal issues, not related to employment with the State of Montana or a union. 

	22. 
	12
	3.2
	Q.
It mentions optional group programming with or without incentives. Can you please explain what type of incentives the State is seeking?  Are incentives currently in place for this type of programming?  If we are unable to provide incentives, will this exclude us from consideration?
A.
The State is currently offering a pilot Stress Resilience Program for a limited number of employees in a high risk environment.  The vendor for the program recommended a set incentive for participants, and the State is funding the incentive, in addition to paying for the program. 
Not offering optional program, with or without incentives, does not exclude a vendor from consideration.  The State has the option of offering the EAP service to one vendor and special programming to another.  We are looking for a solid EAP service first and foremost.

	23. 
	12
	3.2
	Q.
Please clarify if vendors must respond to each bullet in the list of services under Scope of Services Sought.
A.
Yes, vendors should fully describe the services they have to offer in response to each item listed.

	24. 
	12-13
	3.2.1 and 3.2.2
	Q.
Please clarify if vendors must both respond directly to each bullet in each subsection, as well as to the questions posed in the “response guideline” section or if a response only to the “response guideline” is sufficient.
A.
See response to question # 1.

	25. 
	13
	3.2.3
	Q.
Please clarify the role of the HCBD EAP Manager.
A.
The EAP Manager works with State employees, managers and HR professionals to identify and meet the mental health needs of State workers.  The EAP Manager will work closely with the EAP vendor to ensure that services offered are utilized, to direct people in need to the EAP service, and to connect groups and managers in need with the appropriate training and coaching available through the EAP service. 

	26. 
	13
	3.2.3
	Q.
The specifications state that If a referral for more extensive counseling is made, the contractor will notify the HCBD EAP Manager and provide all appropriate referral information. Please provide additional information. Is this only for formal mandatory referrals?  The EAP would not share this type of information for self-referrals.

A.
The State recognizes the need for patient confidentiality and would expect that most interactions between client and EAP service would remain independent of the State HCBD staff.  There may be exceptions when a person has a specific need; for example: case management.  If the EAP provider identifies the client has a high level of need, and may need some inpatient care, HCBD can work with that individual to assist with prior authorization process and finding in- network care.   In such cases, the client would need to be amenable to receiving that assistance and sign a release for the vendor and HCBD to share information. 

	27. 
	13
	3.2.3
	Q.
What is the State’s release of information process when a client needs a referral for more extensive counseling and the HCBD EAP manager is to be provided all appropriate referral information.
A.
The State is expecting the EAP counseling network to align with the State Plan provider network in order to provide continuity of care when more extensive counseling is required.  It is the State’s expectation that all EAP vendors adhere to Federal and State Privacy guidelines. The State will work with the EAP vendor to find a smooth ROI process in order to address necessary case management issues.

	28. 
	13
	3.2.3
	Q.
Please clarify what assessment documentation would be required to establish that a case met the criteria for more extensive counseling covered by the State Plan?  Would the State of Montana require the EAP to provide a DSM diagnosis?
A.
If ongoing counseling is required, any continued counseling would be subject to regular benefits covered under the State Plan.  Mental health is covered under the Plan, and does not need prior authorization.  There are a few things not covered under the Plan, such as marriage counseling, or court ordered anger management.  But treatment for most mental health issues such as depression, adjustment disorder, anxiety, bi-polar disorder, etc. are covered.  If the member is concerned about coverage, a customer service number is available to verify coverage.    

	29. 
	13
	3.2.3
	Q.
Please provide clarification related to the role/purpose of notifying the HCBD EAP Manager of all referrals outside of the EAP and providing detail regarding the referral?  What referral information is required and what is the purpose of this notification?  Is it for authorization purposes or to track outcomes?
A.
To clarify, the State does not expect notification of every single outside referral.  What is expected, is regular reporting of the number and types of referrals made.  The point of contact for this reporting will be the EAP Manager.  The only time the EAP Manager would be involved on an individual basis would be if the employee needs assistance from the EAP Manager or HCBD.  For example, case management or assistance with an issue in the workplace.  In this case, the EAP Manager would be the first point of contact to get the employee into appropriate case management, or may be able to assist in resolving a workplace conflict.  The employee would need to sign a Release of Information for the EAP vendor to release information to HCBD. 

	30. 
	13
	3.2.3
	Q.    Please describe the role of the HCBD Manager and what is the purpose of notifying this person when the EAP makes a referral for more extensive counseling? Would the employee be required to signed [sic] a Release of Information allowing the EAP to speak with the HCBD EAP manager?
A.     See the answer for Question 29.

	31. 
	13
	3.2.3
	Q.    Will the State provide the EAP with a list of counselors who participate in the State Plan?
A.     Yes.  

	32. 
	13
	3.2.3
	Q.    In the Response Guideline, it mentions that the State has in house case management. Does the State intend to case manage EAP cases, or would the in house case management occur only in cases where the employee has been referred for services beyond the EAP? What process does the State currently use to determine which case are case managed?
A.     We do not intend to manage EAP cases.  Our case management is for complex or high dollar medical claims.  An example of referral to HCBD for case management would be if the EAP vendor identified an employee not already in case management who may benefit from the assistance, or an employee in need of some kind of inpatient mental health or addictions treatment.  In these instances, a case manager could assist the member through the prior authorization process and in finding the best treatment options with the least out of pocket expense to the member. 

	33. 
	14
	3.2.5
	Q.
Please provide clarification of the requested notification process to the HCBD and the desired referral information for cases related to critical incidents.  Please clarify the kind of follow up required for these cases and what if any information would be provided to the HCBD EAP Manager on these cases?
A.
For critical incidents that involve State Agencies, HCBD would like to know when these critical incidents take place, and the nature of the incident.  HCBD, at the request of the Administration, is working to track critical incidents in a timely manner.  We would like face to face contact for the incident debriefing and courtesy follow up to ensure the group is doing well following the incident.  We do not require specific details regarding individuals being debriefed, or information that might compromise the confidentiality or therapeutic discussion between the employees and EAP counselor.  However, the employer does maintain the need and right to know when an incident has taken place that impacts a group of employees and a stress debriefing is being done in the workplace.  For example, last year a manager died by suicide after it was alleged that he committed a crime.  This incident affected the entire group and a counselor was contracted to go and talk with the entire group.  A couple of individuals within that group were identified as needing more support, and were referred to their individual benefits for continued assistance.  That counselor followed up with the group about 3-4 weeks later to check status. 

	34. 
	14
	3.2.5
	Q.
How many critical incidents has the State had in each of the past three (3) years? How many hours of critical incident stress management services are you interested in having included within the contract?
A.
This is difficult to assess, and one of the primary reasons we are putting out a bid for EAP services.  Because there hasn’t been a formal EAP plan or protocol, many of the critical incidents have gone unaddressed, or have been addressed within each individual agency.  Often the members involved have been referred to private counselors rather than having a group incident stress debriefing. 

        Once we have an EAP service, HCBD and Human Resources will be instructing managers in every agency and at every level on when and how to utilize the service for critical incidents. 

	35. 
	14
	3.2.5
	Q.    How many on-site critical incident services were provided during 2013 and 2014?
A.    See response to question # 34.

	36. 
	14
	3.2.5
	Q.
With no current EAP in place, what has the State used to address Critical Incident Stress De-Briefing in the past? Please provide a listing of these services provided for the years 2013 and 2014.
A.
Currently, when a division administrator or HR person contacts HCBD with a request, and the EAP Manager contracts an individual therapist in the community to provide services to that group.  Individuals in need are referred to therapists participating with the State Plan and/or behavioral health coaching available through the Montana Health Centers located in Miles City, Billings, Helena, Butte, Anaconda, and Missoula.

	37. 
	14
	3.2.5
	Q.
How many on-site critical incidents occurred in 2013 and in 2014 respectively?
A.
See response to question # 34.

	38. 
	15
	3.2.6
	Q.
Does the State currently have a contract in place with a vendor to provide these types of trainings? If yes, how many hours of training are provided each year? How many training hours is the State interested in having included within the contract?
A.
Currently, we are offering a pilot Resilience Program through a contracted vendor to a limited number of employees in a high needs agency.  Aside from that program, training is contracted by the agency. The EAP Manager will work closely with the EAP vendor to identify need in different agencies.

       The EAP Manager has partnered with a trainer in Human Resources to launch a series of trainings targeting workplace bullying called Healthy Employees Healthy Workplaces.  These trainings will continue after the EAP vendor is in place.  

        Because the individual agencies have been handling their own training needs, it’s difficult to assess exact utilization going into the first year of the service.  Based on the response from management to the Healthy Employees training, we expect a warm response to offers of different types of management training and support. 

        Describe what trainings and services are offered as part of your regular EAP services, and also discuss if it is possible for your company to offer trainings and services beyond the scope of the usual EAP and what that would cost, should need exceed what is covered by the PEPM fee.

	39. 
	15
	3.2.6
	Q.
How are you envisioning a bank of training hours to be managed across the State agencies? Will the HCBD EAP Manager serve as a gatekeeper for training requests? Will all State agencies have access to the training hours with the EAP holding responsibility for tracking the number of hours used?
A.
Yes, the EAP Manager will be the gatekeeper for training requests. All State agencies will have access to training hours, and the EAP Manager in HCBD will work closely with the EAP vendor to ensure needs are met and hours utilized in areas of greatest need.

	40. 
	15
	3.2.6
	Q.
How does the State orient managers and employees on current benefits? With no current EAP in place, how do managers deal with employee performance issues today?
A.
The HCBD hosts bi-annual benefits tours.  The “Spring Expo” takes place in April, and Fall Benefits Tour” takes place during the annual change period in October of each year.  Current benefits including employee assistance resources are available to everyone via the HCBD website.  HCBD and Human Resources regularly distribute benefit information via email, mailings, webinars, and face to face meetings.  HCBD expects to work with the EAP vendor to market all available EAP services to employees and dependents. 

        Performance issues are dealt with in the agency, unless managers seek assistance from State HR or from HCBD.  HCBD would like to be more proactive in offering trainings and services such as coaching to address these types of issues, and the EAP Manager will be utilizing the trainings offered through the EAP vendor as primary source for this support.  The HCBD EAP Manager is the point of contact for agencies in this regard.

	41. 
	15
	3.2.6
	Q.
How many hours of onsite orientation, training, and educational programs are included in the current contract per year? How many were used in 2013 and in 2014 respectively?
A.
There is not a contract currently in place.  See answer to question 38.

	42. 
	15
	3.2.6
	Q.
The RFP references a variety of Educational Programs.  Does the State of Montana have a minimum number of hours for these kinds of services that it wishes to be included in the contracted rate?  Does the State have any information on the past utilization of similar types of services?
A.
The State leaves the number of hours for Educational Programs to the discretion of the EAP provider to address in their proposal. In previous contracts, a set number of face to face group training hours was offered as part of the basic contract, and a guaranteed hourly rate provided for group training over and above the basic contract.

	43. 
	15
	3.2.6
	Q.    How many hours of training/workshops/orientations do the State anticipate that it will need per year, or how many hours does the State desire to be included in the contract?
A.     See response to questions # 41 and 42.

	44. 
	15
	3.2.7
	Q.
Does the State administer their FMLA internally? Or is this done [sic] through an outside vendor?
A.
FMLA is administered internally.

	45. 
	16
	3.2.8
	Q.
How many hours of attendance is [sic] needed at the employee benefit seminars during the Fall Benefits Tour of 2015? Is this tour held at one central location?  If not, how many hours at how many different locations?
A.
The State desires to have the EAP contractor available when requested for as many Fall Benefits Tour meetings as possible. Each of these meetings provides an ideal opportunity for the EAP Contractor to market their expertise and services. These meetings are held throughout the State. In 2014, the State held 20 meetings in Helena, 6 webinar presentations, and meetings in another 23 cities throughout the State.  The request for EAP vendors to participate in benefit presentations will be determined as the state develops the schedule and content of presentations.  

	46. 
	16
	3.2.8
	Q.
What level of customization are you interested in for communication materials (e.g. logo, content, etc.)?
A.
The State desires to have an active participatory role in the customization of all communication materials including, but not limited to, logo and content.  Our Communications Manager must give preapproval for all communications on behalf of the State of Montana. 

	47. 
	16
	3.2.8
	Q.
What types of communication materials worked best in reaching your employees and household members (e.g. electronic, hard copy, etc.)?
A.
Because many State employees are in rural areas, without access to home internet services, we find that a combination of email and home mailings is the most effective method of communicating important information.  We are also educating our employees to look to our website, benefits.mt.gov, for the most up to date information.  EAP vendor contact information and links to the vendor website will be made available on this site under the EAP page. 

	48. 
	16
	3.2.8
	Q.
As an independent, standalone EAP, we provide pre-diagnostic services. Because of this, we are unable to provide reports documenting referrals by diagnosis. Will this exclude us from consideration?
A.
No, it will not.  Documentation of the types of referrals you are making are important to us, e.g. mental health counseling, addiction services, legal, financial, etc.; but specific diagnosis is not expected.  Our desire is to provide a service where our employees feel they can disclose confidential information without their employer’s involvement or knowledge. The only exception would be HIPAA authorized disclosures of information to support the member.

	49. 
	16
	3.2.8
	Q.
We are unable to provide notification to the claims administrator of certified treatments. Will this exclude us from consideration?
A.
If, by certified treatments, you mean disclosing information specific diagnostic information for individual members, then no, it will not exclude you from consideration.  See answer for question # 48. 

	50. 
	16
	3.2.8
	Q.
We are unable to ensure appropriate certification of cases that have or may have dual psychiatric/medical diagnoses. Will this exclude us from consideration?
A.
If by certified treatments you mean disclosing specific diagnostic information for individual members, then no, it will not exclude you from consideration.  See answer for question 48.

	51. 
	16
	3.2.8
	Q.
Describe how you will notify the claims administrator (currently Cigna) of certified treatments so that claims are adjudicated appropriately. Please clarify this requirement as it seems to be outside of the scope of the EAP.
A.
The EAP Manager would serve as the liaison to our claims administrator in the event the EAP vendor would need information from the TPA.  Additionally, the State recognizes that this requirement may be out of scope and is willing to remove “Describe how you will notify the claims administrator (currently Cigna) of certified treatments so that claims are adjudicated appropriately” as a requirement of Section 3.2.8. 
        All other requirements of 3.2.8 remain and must be addressed in your proposal. This change does not alter the requirements of Achieving a Minimum Score in Section 2.4.5. This change does affect the points available in Evaluation Criteria Section 5.2 - #8 and changes the available points from 70 to 60. The total available points for Section 5.2 changes from 620 to 610.

	52. 
	16
	3.2.8
	Q.
The specifications request attendance at employee benefit seminars during the Fall Benefits Tour of 2015. Please provide additional information about the benefit seminars. What is the estimated number of hours of attendance?
A.
Please refer to the response in Question #45.

	53. 
	16
	3.2.8
	Q.
Regarding attendance at employee benefit seminars during the Fall Benefits Tour – Please provide number of events and number of days.
A.
Please refer to the response in Question #45.

	54. 
	16
	3.2.8
	Q.
Regarding Response Guideline Item – “describe how you will notify the claims administrator (currently Cigna) of certified treatments so that claims are adjudicated appropriately.”  Is it the State’s intention for the EAP to be a “gate” for mental health and substance abuse services where members are required, encouraged or provided an incentive to go through the EAP before accessing their mental health  / substance abuse benefits provided by the State plan?  What kind of certification is being requested?
A.
Please refer to the response in Question #51.

	55. 
	17
	3.2.8
	Q.
How frequently are eligibility files sent currently?
A.
Every two weeks.

	56. 
	17
	3.2.8
	Q.
Question 3 should never happen if the EAP is going to be made available to all State employees and their family members. Please clarify.
A.
That is correct.  We plan to offer these services to all employees and their immediate family members.  This question was included in error; please disregard.

	57. 
	18
	4.2.1 #4
	Q.
How many former client company references would you like us to include?
A.
Three.

	58. 
	18
	4.2.1. #7
	Q.
Can you provide an employee census with home zip codes?
A.
Please see the “Employee Census by Zip Code” listed at the end of the document. 

	59. 
	18
	4.2.1 #7
	Q.
It notes that the State does not expect to have on-site counselors in each location.  Will the State want on-site counselors at any of its locations?  If so, how many hours at each location (please provide the city) per week?
A.
The only time the State would request counselors to come into the workplace would be for critical incident stress debriefing or some other type of emergency service, or for scheduled training. Both training and emergency services would be scheduled according to need, and coordinated through the State of Montana EAP Manager.

	60. 
	18
	4.2.1
	Q.    Number 7 states “The State does not expect to have on-site counselors at each location.” Is the state expecting the EAP to have onsite counselors at the workplace in certain locations? If yes, what locations and how many hours per week does the state expect the counselor to be onsite at each of the specified locations.
A.    See the response to Question # 59. 

	61. 
	19
	4.2.1 #9
	Q.
When you reference EAP counselor, is this our telephonic counselors located at our call center or our in-person providers?
A.
The State would prefer for mental health counseling to be in person and align with the provider network established with our Third Party Administrator.  If this is not an option for your company, please provide information regarding your telephonic counseling and what is included in these services.  

	62. 
	19
	4.2.1 #10
	Q.
When you reference EAP counselor, is this our telephonic counselors located at our call center or our in-person providers?
A.
See the response to Question #61.

	63. 
	19
	4.2.4
	Q.
Do progress payments apply to this contract?
A.
Per the RFP, the State may authorize progress payments throughout the term of the contract. If offeror(s) desire such payments, provide a proposed schedule of progress payments in “% of completion” terms for the work to be performed.

	64. 
	24
	6
	Q.
Do prevailing wage requirements apply to only Contractor's employees in Montana or do they apply nationwide?
A.
Prevailing Wage requirements apply to all employees engaged in this contract.

	65. 
	24
	8
	Q.
Does subcontracting include the use of affiliate providers for face-to-face counseling and for work life service companies?
A.
Yes.

	66. 
	33
	Business Associate Agreement
	Q.
Because we are a Covered Entity under HIPAA/HITECH regulations, there is no need for a separate Business Associate Agreement (BAA).  If you require a separate document, we agree to mutually negotiate one that covers the applicable state information privacy regulations along with other appropriate language.  Is this acceptable?
A.
We would require a cross Business Associate Agreements as the State and the Contractor would both be business associates and covered entities within the relationship.

	67. 
	44
	Appendix C
	Q.
Has a budget been set for this new benefit? If yes, what is the budget amount?
A.
The previous budget was based on a service model that is no longer relevant.  Offerors should provide their best cost proposal for the services contemplated under the RFP.

	68. 
	44
	Appendix C
	Q.
On the pricing sheet it asks for 4 and 6 visit PEPM model rates and below that it asks for rate by year but only has one line.  Should a second line be added to provide yearly rate for both the 4 and 6 session model options?
A.
Offerors should provide all relevant information applicable to the rates they are proposing. If a second or more lines are necessary, Offerors should include them as part of their proposal.

	69. 
	45
	Appendix D
	Q.
Please provide the number of lives that should be used when determining pricing.
A.
See response to question # 7.

	70. 
	45
	Appendix D
	Q.
Please provide an employee zip code census so we may run a GeoAccess network coverage report.
A.
Please see the “Employee Census by Zip Code” listed at the end of the document. 


Question #58-
Employee Census by Zip Code
	Zip
	Employee Count

	13316
	1

	15931
	1

	16901
	1

	17111
	1

	20001
	1

	20186
	1

	21767
	1

	22213
	1

	27576
	1

	28468
	1

	29412
	1

	30132
	1

	30577
	1

	32163
	1

	32826
	1

	32828
	1

	33062
	1

	33445
	1

	33478
	1

	33647
	1

	37030
	1

	37075
	1

	38016
	1

	38583
	1

	42544
	1

	43758
	1

	46391
	1

	46552
	1

	47143
	1

	48015
	1

	49862
	1

	51563
	1

	53590
	1

	53818
	1

	54303
	1

	55090
	1

	55125
	1

	55378
	1

	55792
	1

	56127
	1

	56601
	1

	57701
	1

	57702
	2

	57747
	1

	58501
	1

	58503
	1

	58601
	1

	58620
	1

	58621
	1

	58642
	1

	58801
	2

	58838
	1

	59001
	7

	59003
	8

	59006
	5

	59007
	1

	59010
	3

	59011
	30

	59014
	13

	59015
	2

	59016
	5

	59018
	7

	59019
	26

	59022
	1

	59024
	4

	59025
	4

	59026
	3

	59027
	3

	59029
	1

	59030
	5

	59032
	8

	59034
	44

	59036
	16

	59037
	13

	59038
	11

	59041
	18

	59043
	6

	59044
	66

	59046
	7

	59047
	69

	59050
	6

	59052
	1

	59053
	2

	59054
	4

	59057
	4

	59058
	2

	59059
	1

	59062
	1

	59063
	14

	59065
	2

	59066
	2

	59068
	24

	59069
	8

	59070
	8

	59072
	39

	59074
	7

	59075
	1

	59078
	1

	59079
	22

	59086
	8

	59087
	6

	59088
	12

	59101
	231

	59102
	363

	59103
	4

	59104
	10

	59105
	249

	59106
	101

	59107
	5

	59108
	9

	59201
	80

	59211
	2

	59212
	1

	59214
	2

	59215
	12

	59218
	17

	59221
	1

	59222
	3

	59223
	13

	59225
	2

	59226
	3

	59230
	90

	59241
	3

	59243
	4

	59247
	1

	59248
	14

	59250
	2

	59252
	1

	59254
	24

	59255
	2

	59258
	1

	59259
	2

	59261
	1

	59262
	4

	59263
	14

	59270
	49

	59274
	1

	59276
	1

	59301
	358

	59311
	1

	59313
	16

	59314
	1

	59315
	1

	59316
	1

	59317
	16

	59318
	2

	59323
	15

	59324
	6

	59326
	5

	59327
	30

	59330
	176

	59336
	4

	59337
	13

	59338
	3

	59344
	3

	59349
	15

	59351
	2

	59353
	16

	59401
	127

	59403
	11

	59404
	313

	59405
	298

	59406
	3

	59410
	14

	59411
	5

	59412
	23

	59414
	12

	59416
	4

	59417
	24

	59418
	2

	59420
	1

	59421
	35

	59422
	27

	59425
	44

	59427
	30

	59430
	6

	59432
	5

	59433
	11

	59434
	5

	59436
	23

	59440
	2

	59441
	1

	59442
	15

	59443
	10

	59446
	4

	59447
	1

	59448
	2

	59450
	3

	59451
	7

	59452
	5

	59456
	1

	59457
	344

	59460
	1

	59462
	1

	59463
	7

	59464
	10

	59465
	1

	59468
	4

	59469
	2

	59471
	4

	59472
	6

	59474
	44

	59477
	1

	59479
	11

	59480
	5

	59482
	4

	59483
	9

	59484
	1

	59485
	7

	59486
	7

	59487
	12

	59489
	1

	59501
	136

	59520
	6

	59521
	3

	59522
	12

	59523
	32

	59524
	2

	59525
	1

	59526
	7

	59527
	1

	59530
	1

	59531
	3

	59532
	1

	59538
	27

	59540
	1

	59547
	1

	59601
	3029

	59602
	2111

	59604
	114

	59620
	8

	59624
	69

	59631
	20

	59632
	292

	59633
	16

	59634
	478

	59635
	675

	59636
	2

	59638
	56

	59639
	20

	59640
	2

	59642
	2

	59643
	7

	59644
	135

	59645
	20

	59647
	21

	59648
	26

	59701
	758

	59702
	17

	59703
	9

	59710
	2

	59711
	708

	59713
	13

	59714
	117

	59715
	168

	59717
	1

	59718
	190

	59719
	10

	59720
	2

	59721
	9

	59722
	472

	59724
	2

	59725
	140

	59727
	4

	59728
	17

	59729
	22

	59730
	9

	59731
	8

	59732
	4

	59733
	4

	59735
	5

	59736
	2

	59739
	12

	59740
	4

	59741
	22

	59743
	2

	59745
	1

	59747
	3

	59748
	14

	59749
	18

	59750
	9

	59751
	5

	59752
	32

	59754
	10

	59755
	8

	59756
	116

	59758
	18

	59759
	52

	59760
	1

	59761
	9

	59762
	5

	59771
	8

	59772
	3

	59801
	207

	59802
	142

	59803
	140

	59804
	66

	59806
	11

	59807
	11

	59808
	180

	59820
	13

	59821
	19

	59823
	19

	59824
	8

	59825
	21

	59826
	5

	59827
	2

	59828
	36

	59829
	9

	59830
	2

	59831
	2

	59832
	13

	59833
	35

	59834
	25

	59837
	10

	59840
	81

	59841
	1

	59842
	5

	59843
	3

	59844
	1

	59845
	10

	59846
	12

	59847
	44

	59848
	1

	59851
	5

	59853
	3

	59854
	2

	59858
	20

	59859
	21

	59860
	85

	59864
	31

	59865
	7

	59866
	14

	59868
	16

	59870
	60

	59871
	3

	59872
	25

	59873
	34

	59874
	2

	59875
	9

	59901
	390

	59903
	19

	59904
	9

	59910
	4

	59911
	52

	59912
	184

	59913
	12

	59914
	2

	59915
	1

	59916
	2

	59917
	22

	59918
	2

	59919
	11

	59920
	17

	59922
	13

	59923
	114

	59925
	7

	59926
	10

	59927
	1

	59930
	1

	59931
	3

	59932
	10

	59934
	4

	59935
	15

	59936
	5

	59937
	82

	61114
	1

	63376
	1

	63935
	1

	69361
	1

	70726
	1

	71037
	1

	73142
	1

	75075
	1

	75088
	1

	75135
	1

	75709
	1

	76040
	1

	77066
	1

	77075
	1

	77399
	1

	77546
	1

	77836
	1

	78414
	1

	78578
	1

	80004
	1

	80020
	1

	80121
	1

	80224
	1

	80233
	1

	80517
	1

	80915
	1

	80917
	1

	81321
	1

	81401
	1

	82003
	1

	82050
	1

	82609
	1

	82716
	1

	82801
	2

	82834
	1

	82836
	1

	83202
	1

	83210
	1

	83301
	1

	83324
	1

	83401
	2

	83404
	1

	83440
	1

	83467
	1

	83501
	1

	83536
	1

	83616
	1

	83624
	1

	83638
	1

	83646
	2

	83687
	1

	83709
	1

	83714
	1

	83814
	2

	83835
	2

	83855
	1

	83858
	1

	83861
	1

	84004
	1

	84029
	1

	84062
	1

	84066
	1

	84094
	1

	84103
	1

	84663
	1

	85016
	1

	85023
	1

	85085
	1

	85122
	1

	85143
	1

	85205
	1

	85248
	1

	85249
	1

	85253
	2

	85296
	1

	85345
	1

	85348
	1

	85351
	2

	85364
	2

	85367
	1

	85374
	1

	85375
	2

	85622
	1

	85650
	1

	85705
	1

	85713
	1

	85901
	1

	86336
	1

	86440
	1

	87031
	1

	87112
	1

	89009
	1

	89024
	1

	89027
	1

	89131
	1

	89135
	1

	89705
	1

	89815
	1

	91001
	1

	91384
	1

	92057
	1

	92301
	1

	92867
	1

	93257
	1

	93535
	1

	93704
	1

	95018
	1

	95482
	1

	95621
	1

	95993
	1

	96790
	1

	97006
	1

	97068
	1

	97116
	1

	97128
	1

	97136
	1

	97221
	1

	97370
	1

	97392
	1

	97401
	1

	97415
	2

	97479
	1

	97756
	1

	97801
	1

	98012
	1

	98029
	1

	98056
	1

	98108
	1

	98109
	1

	98118
	1

	98201
	1

	98208
	1

	98277
	1

	98292
	1

	98362
	1

	98368
	1

	98370
	1

	98382
	3

	98443
	1

	98516
	1

	98550
	1

	98661
	1

	98664
	1

	98665
	1

	98671
	1

	99016
	1

	99156
	1

	99208
	2

	99216
	2

	99217
	2

	99338
	1

	99354
	2

	99362
	2

	99403
	1

	99518
	1

	99603
	1
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